
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Wednesday, September 4, 2019 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the July 10, 2019 special meeting. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  

a)   Case HPC-05-2019 – 719 S. Park Ave. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 
demolish and construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District.  

b)  Case HPC-07-2019 – 332 E. Chicago Ave. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 
construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District.  

 
5.   DISCUSSION 

a)  Historic Preservation Commission Regulations Review – Certificate of Appropriateness – 
Downtown Historic District 

 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
7.    OTHER BUSINESS 
  
8.    ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who require certain 
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in these meetings, or who 
have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the facilities, are requested to contact 
Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the 
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  website:  
www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

July 10, 2019  

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale 

6:30 P.M. 

             

Chairman Bohnen called the special meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission 

(HPC) to order at 6:00 p.m. on July 10, 2019, in Memorial Hall in the Memorial Building, 19 

East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 

 

Present:   Chairman Bohnen, Commissioner Weinberger, Commissioner Williams, 

Commissioner Prisby and Commissioner Gonzalez 

Absent:   Commissioner Haarlow  

Also Present: Chan Yu, Village Planner   

  

 

Minutes 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the minutes from the May 1, 2019, meeting and asked for any 

comments.  Commissioner Prisby had a correction request for line 15, of pages 15 and 16, 

“project” should replace “home”.  And on page 16, line 16, add “are” after “that”.  

 

With no further comments, the HPC unanimously approved the minutes for the May 1, 

2019, HPC meeting, 4-0, 2 absent.   

 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the minutes from the June 5, 2019, meetings and asked for 

any comments.  Commissioner Williams had a correction on pages 8 and 18, lines 9 and 18, 

respectively, the word “Tudor” was misspelled.  

 

With no further comments, the HPC unanimously approved the minutes for the June 5, 

2019, HPC meeting, 4-0, 2 absent.   

 

 

Public Hearing  -Certificate of Appropriateness  

Case HPC-03-2019 – 321 E. 7th St. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish 

and construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic District 

 

At the July 10, HPC special meeting, the applicant’s attorney, Pete Coules reviewed the 

application and introduced the project architect to answer questions. In general, the HPC 

expressed less concern for the request with the additional information, illustration and 

sample materials provided.  

 

Please refer to Attachment 1, for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC-03-2019  

 

With no further comments, a motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness was 

unanimously approved, 5-0 (1 absent).     

Approved 



Public Hearing  -Certificate of Appropriateness  

Case HPC-04-2019 – 35 S. Garfield St. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 

demolish and construct a new office building in the Robbins Park Historic District. 

 

At the July 10, 2019, HPC public hearing, Mr. Tom Hawbecker reviewed the revisions to 

the elevator to the attic. In general, the HPC expressed support and gratitude for working 

with Commissioner Prisby and Commissioner Gonzalez for a much improved building plan. 

 

Please refer to Attachment 2, for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC-04-2019  

 

With no further comments, a motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness was 

unanimously approved, 5-0 (1 absent).     

 

 

Signage in the Historic Downtown District 

Case A-21-2019 – 40 S. Washington  St. – Alixandra Collections – 1 New Wall Sign 

and 1 Wall Sign Update 

 

The sign contractor introduced himself and asked if the HPC had any questions. 

 

Commissioner Williams raised an issue that the proposed sign has a logo and does not 

believe that is allowed, and asked Chan for clarification.  

 

Chan responded that an applicant may request for a logo on a wall sign. 

 

Commissioner Prisby asked if that counts towards the maximum SF. 

 

Chan responded correct.  

 

Commissioner Prisby asked if the proposed sign is under the maximum, and if so, how 

significantly.  

 

Chan responded the sign is less than half the area of the max permitted. 

 

Commissioner Prisby stated that he has no issues with the sign. 

 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked if the wall behind the sign stucco. 

 

The sign contractor replied that he believes it is. 

 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked what is on the 2nd floor. 

 

Chan responded office use. 

 

With no further comments, a motion to recommend approving the sign was unanimously 

approved, 5-0 (1 absent).     

 



Signage in the Historic Downtown District 

Case A-22-2019 – 24 W. Hinsdale Ave. – Michael Abraham Architects – 1 New Wall 

Sign  

 

The sign contractor introduced herself and asked if the HPC had any questions. 

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked to clarify if they are only commenting on the sign. 

 

Chairman Bohnen replied that the HPC can comment on the building. 

 

Chan stated that the proposed sign was not ready for review from the previous exterior 

appearance review by the Plan Commission. The sign was on the exhibit, but only for 

illustrative purposes.  The dimensions and sign application was not submitted at the time. 

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked why the HPC does not review building rehab if it is in the 

historic district. 

 

Chairman Bohnen replied we do. 

 

Commissioner Williams asked about the proposed oculus enlargement, and stated that it 

contradicts the criteria for a certificate of appropriateness and prefers that it stays the 

same size.  

 

The sign contractor stated that they are attempting to keep it proportionate to the other 

windows being enlarged.  

 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked how far the canopy extends. 

 

The sign contractor stated about 24 inches. 

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked if the sides are a veneered stone. 

 

The sign contractor stated that she was not sure, but they are not removing the existing 

brick, and that they are proposing to add brick.  

 

In general, the HPC complimented the plan in that it looks nice.   

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked about the illumination method for the proposed sign. 

 

Commissioner Prisby reviewed halo lighting for signage to the group, but clarified that this 

sign would be backlit; and asked the application how far is the light source in relation to the 

wall. 

 

The sign contractor replied about 18 inches from the wall. 

 



Commissioner Prisby stated that the only thing that bothers him about the request is the 

distance the sign is pulled away from the wall. More discussion regarding the distance 

between the sign and wall ensued.  

 

With no further comments, a motion to recommend approving the sign was unanimously 

approved, 5-0 (1 absent), with the condition that the Plan Commission consider a shorter 

distance between the wall and proposed sign.     

 

 

Discussion – Hinsdale Historical Society (HHS) Project Update – Historic Plaque 

Program 

 

It was reported that the HHS plaque program is very popular and that the demand is very 

high. 

 

 

Public Comment – 

 

Chairman Bohnen reviewed that there is no HPC meeting in August.   

 

Chairman Bohnen stated, as a matter of expediting, he believes staff should inform 

Certificate of Appropriateness applicants that the HPC will not make a decision for 

demolition requests unless the HPC knows what will be built/plans for the new house are 

included in the application.  

 

 

Adjournment 

 

The HPC unanimously agreed to adjourn at 6:48 PM on July 10, 2019. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Chan Yu, Village Planner 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

        BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
       HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF:          )
                           )
CASE NO. HPC-03-2019       )        

                           )
321 East 7th Street        ) 

         CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and 

testimony taken at the Public Hearing on the 

Certificate of Appropriateness in the above- 

entitled matter before the Hinsdale Historic 

Preservation Commission, at 19 East Chicago 

Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on the 10th day of 

July, 2019, at 6:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. JOHN BOHNEN, Chairman; 

         MR. FRANK GONZALEZ, Member;

MR. JIM PRISBY, Member; 

         MS. SANDRA WILLIAMS, Member;

MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER, Member.

                  * * *

HPC 07.10.19 Minutes - Attachment 1
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     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2

         MR. PETER COULES, Attorney for3
             Petitioner;

4
         MR. BERNIE BARTELLI, Architecture for
             Petitioner;5

         MR. THOMAS HAWBECKER.6

                  * * *7

8

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We now have two9
public hearings.  Anybody that's going to speak06:04:30PM 10
during these hearings, please stand to be sworn11
in.12

(Mr. Coules, Mr. Bartelli, and13
               Mr. Hawbecker sworn.)14

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We will open up with15
Case HPC-03-2019 for 321 East 7th Street.16

MR. COULES:  Good evening.  Peter17
Coules on behalf of the owner.  Sorry I was not18
at the last meeting.19

And we have an architect here06:05:12PM 20
tonight, Bernie Bartelli, from Michael Abraham's21
office to answer any questions.  He brought all22

28

the materials so you could see the colors.  It's1
all real material.  None of it is like a fake2
frontage with a stone and for the slate roofing3
and that.  The house is 5 feet below what it4
could be in the middle of it.  That's just the5
middle.  So it's actually a much smaller-scale6
house than would really be allowed to be built7
there.  It fits in really well with the8
neighborhood.9

The only neighbor I personally06:05:34PM 10
heard from was Dr. Paul Sigfusson next door.  He11
loved it.  First thing he said to me is why is12
there an issue with the house, I like it13
because it's not as big as I thought it would be14
and not as towering over us, much as I thought15
it would be; and they are leaving the driveways16
where they are at.17

I said, it's a step we have to go18
through.  I wrote a personal letter to19
everybody, contact me by email or phone call and06:05:56PM 20
I would personally meet with anybody.  He was21
the only person that contacted me.22

29

So the colors are there now.  I'm sorry1
my associate did not know the colors.  And there2
are the materials that are there for the house.3
Bernie is here to answer any questions.4

It's not an issue anymore of taking5
down the other house.  I mean I didn't even fit6
through three of the door frames.  I had to turn7
sideways.  It kind of made me feel a little bad.8
I went home and didn't eat for a day.9

MR. PRISBY:  Hey, Chan, what happened06:06:27PM 10
to the photos?  Everything we have is black on11
the inside, the existing.12

MR. YU:  That is how it was submitted.13
MR. PRISBY:  Did anyone else get this?14
MS. WEINBERGER:  No, they look like15

that.16
MR. COULES:  So we got color renderings17

since last time put into everybody's packet.18
And then, like I said, Bernie is here to answer19
any questions.  Because I know there were06:06:43PM 20
questions about what the materials were, what21
the colors were, all legitimate questions that22

30

my associate did not know the answers to.1
MS. WEINBERGER:  So the stucco areas of2

the home are that gray?3
MR. BARTELLI:  It will be a whiter gray4

than this.  This is just our in-office type of5
sample.  It will be a real 3-coat stucco, not6
Dryvit or anything like that.7

MS. WEINBERGER:  But it will be white?8
MR. BARTELLI:  It will be more9

indicative of that rendering on the screen to06:07:11PM 10
the one on the left.11

MR. PRISBY:  Is that an actual white?12
Because that looked very white up there.13

MR. BARTELLI:  That's more I think the14
copy, but it will be a mix between this and that15
one.  Trying to go more with the mortar of the16
stone is the idea.17

(Enter Mr. Frank Gonzales.)18
MR. COULES:  And all real stone being19

used.  And like I said, a real slate floor.06:07:39PM 20
MR. BARTELLI:  And then there will be21

cut limestone around the entrance as well.  And22
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there will be cut limestone for all the sills1
and around the windows on the stone gables will2
be all cut limestone as well.3

MR. PRISBY:  Well, I have to say, I4
really don't have much issue with the top.  It's5
actually one of those things; but while I think6
some of the glass, it might be a little large7
for what we'd like to see and might have a more8
newer-look to it, I like the fact that it is9
natural materials.  I like the color scheme.  I06:08:24PM 10
like the fact that in that part of town there11
are a lot more Tudorish- or cottagey-style12
houses that are in that area.  This seems to13
have a tip of the hat to that size and scale.14

We are not seeing dormers top15
through the 3rd floor, they are on the 2nd16
floor.  It's a lower height as you mentioned.  I17
like it.  I think it's a good house.  It's18
better than a lot of the stuff that has come in19
front of here in the last 12 months, I hate to06:08:52PM 20
tell you.  I may be in the minority.21

MR. COULES:  I think I was with you22

32

because I called Mike and said, Wow, it's a1
really pretty house.2

MR. PRISBY:  I think it is a pretty3
house.4

MS. WEINBERGER:  I'm happy to hear it's5
not as tall as it could be.  Given that I don't6
have a comparison from the original home to the7
size of this home, I just visually -- because I8
don't have that comparison -- was, now maybe not9
as much so now, but I was concerned about the06:09:20PM 10
scale and the size of the home compared to the11
block.12

MR. COULES:  The width of the home13
being built is approximately within 2 feet of14
what exists there now, well, what did exist15
there.  Yes.  It's a very similar scale.  That's16
why they kept it within that same turnaround17
drive.18

It's planned almost like backwards19
to keep everything the way it was.  Same06:09:46PM 20
setback, same everything.  And it's behind both21
houses next to it, both sides.22

33

MS. WILLIAMS:  The setback is further1
back than those on the east side?2

MR. COULES:  Correct.3
MR. BARTELLI:  And we tried to have the4

elements that are closest to the street are 1-,5
1.5-story.  And then further back, you get6
2-story.7

MS. WILLIAMS:  I like the fact that the8
height is in the center.9

MR. PRISBY:  There were some, the06:10:19PM 10
houses we have been seeing with the recycled11
brick, painted or unpainted, very plain, lack12
detail.  It doesn't have the little elements13
that make the architecture special.14

And if you open this up, the things15
that jump out to me are the cut stone jambs that16
vary in width, a little extra detail right where17
the eaves are on each side of the eaves, the cut18
stone.  The stuff we have been seeing just19
doesn't have that kind of detail to it, which I06:10:49PM 20
think is a little more that adds to the charm of21
the architecture.22

34

MR. GONZALEZ:  I'm just curious, it's a1
good-looking house, at least it's not one of2
those Standard Market houses that we see popping3
up in Hinsdale we are seeing everywhere.  That's4
the new name that we are coining, Standard5
Markets.6

So the fenestration, they are7
large.  I assume, as far as like drapery and8
anything like that, I mean that's a lot of big9
windows.  Is that something that people are06:11:25PM 10
looking forward to?11

MR. BARTELLI:  We have a whole plan for12
what's going on for the interior for that as13
well.  So I don't think it's --14

Are you saying is it an issue with15
the owner?16

MR. GONZALEZ:  No.  No.  That's more17
of --  It's because for the last, what, few18
years, it's been windows were normal -- I don't19
know if you can say normal size -- but they have06:11:48PM 20
gotten expanded.  And they have, when I look at21
windows like that, I think, oh, it resembles a22
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loft.  And I'm wondering if there is a trend to1
go that way.2

MR. BARTELLI:  I think with the windows3
you can do now people want a little more4
openness.5

MR. GONZALEZ:  Light?6
MR. BARTELLI:  Openness and light.7
MR. GONZALEZ:  Okay.8
MR. BARTELLI:  So these are two, that's9

a living room on the left and a dining room and06:12:12PM 10
a kind of bay in the middle.  So they wanted to11
bring a lot of that light in.12

MR. GONZALEZ:  Right.  No.  Okay.13
MR. BARTELLI:  We still wanted to14

surround it by masses of stone for those front15
gables, and then big swatches of stucco around16
the big pieces so --17

MR. GONZALEZ:  What's the stone name18
for the stone that you are using?  What is it19
called?06:12:36PM 20

MR. BARTELLI:  This is basswood is what21
we spec'd for this house.  It's by Halquist22

36

Stone.1
MR. GONZALEZ:  Basswood?2
MR. BARTELLI:  Yes.3
MR. GONZALEZ:  And where is Basswood,4

what type of stone is this, a sandstone I5
suppose?  Is it natural or manmade?6

MR. BARTELLI:  All natural, yes.7
MR. GONZALEZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  All8

right.9
MR. BARTELLI:  And it's got a little06:12:52PM 10

variation to it.  It's not all one color.11
MR. GONZALEZ:  Right.12
MR. BARTELLI:  There are a few darker13

pieces.  It's hidden by this.  It's darker and14
lighter.  Mix in size, too, so it's not all15
monochromatic.16

MR. GONZALEZ:  No.  It's a nice-looking17
color.  Just a question.  I don't have any more18
to add.19

MS. WEINBERGER:  I've said my piece.06:13:14PM 20
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Do we have a motion21

to approve this, please.22

37

MR. PRISBY:  I have a motion to approve1
the submittal.2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Second?3
MS. WEINBERGER:  I will second.4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  All in favor?5
MR. PRISBY:  Aye.6
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.7
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.8
MS. WILLIAMS:  Aye.9
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Approved.10
MR. COULES:  Thank you.11
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Thank you very much.12

Appreciate your presentation.13
                   * * *14

(Which were all the proceedings had15
               in the above-entitled cause.)16

17
18
19
20
21
22

38
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR,
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand
notes so taken as aforesaid.

         __________________________________
          Janice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR
          License No. 084-001391
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

        BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
       HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF:          )
                           )
CASE NO. HPC-04-2019       )        

                           )
35 South Garfield Street   ) 

         CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and 

testimony taken at the Public Hearing on the 

Certificate of Appropriateness in the above- 

entitled matter before the Hinsdale Historic 

Preservation Commission at 19 East Chicago 

Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on the 10th day of 

July, 2019, at 6:14 p.m.

     

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. JOHN BOHNEN, Chairman; 

         MR. FRANK GONZALEZ, Member;

MR. JIM PRISBY, Member; 

         MS. SANDRA WILLIAMS, Member;

MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER, Member.
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     ALSO PRESENT:1
         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2
         MR. THOMAS HAWBECKER, Petitioner.3
                       * * *4

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Our second hearing is5
Case HPC-04-2019, 35 South Garfield Street.6

MR. HAWBECKER:  Good evening.  Tom7
Hawbecker here, one of the owners at 35 South8
Garfield following up on the June meeting.  Jim9
and Frank have been engaged in this a lot.  I06:14:32PM 10
don't know how privy the rest of you guys are to11
what's been done, but I think Chan had printed12
out the new schematic of what we have kind of13
come to.  I don't know if you guys still have14
the original rendering.  You can probably15
compare the two.16

Yes.  Exactly.17
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  This I think was the18

second.  This I think was the second rendering.19
MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.20
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Yes.21
MR. HAWBECKER:  That was the second22

35

one.1
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Right.  First2

generation I don't have.3
MR. HAWBECKER:  Sorry.  The first one4

was --  Yes.  The roof line was straight out.5
MR. GONZALEZ:  Yes.  I remember the6

first one.7
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  This is the second8

one.9
MR. PRISBY:  Those with the gable06:15:08PM 10

facing north.11
That was above the regular eave12

line.  That's what made it look a little13
unusual, too big of a mass, not a lot --14

MR. GONZALEZ:  Right.15
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You have come a long16

way, baby.17
MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.  So we worked18

through a lot of this here in the last few days,19
I mean much to the help of Jim and Frank, which06:15:32PM 20
is welcome.  We had three architects for the21
price of one.22

36

MR. PRISBY:  We made some suggestions,1
but Bill pulled it off.2

MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.  But, no, those3
are welcome suggestions.  I don't think anybody4
can look at the two and think that the current5
one doesn't look better than what was originally6
submitted.7

So it's not a huge project on8
Garfield, but it's a visible project.  So all of9
that helped.  It was much appreciated.06:15:57PM 10

MR. GONZALEZ:  Yes.  We were happy.11
There was good collaboration.12

MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.13
MR. GONZALEZ:  Everybody was trying to14

help each other.15
MS. WEINBERGER:  This looks fabulous.16
MR. HAWBECKER:  It looks good.  I17

agree.  I would agree.18
MS. WILLIAMS:  That was the right19

answer for sure.06:16:10PM 20
MR. HAWBECKER:  The turret was the way21

to go.22

37

MS. WEINBERGER:  At our last meeting we1
talked about the bulk space that it was taking2
up.3

MR. HAWBECKER:  Right.4
MS. WEINBERGER:  And this completely5

changes that, completely.  Nice.6
I think it's a perfect example of7

how these should go involving the two of you.8
MR. GONZALEZ:  Yes.9
MR. PRISBY:  I wanted to say something06:16:33PM 10

regarding that.  I mean, Tom, we really11
appreciate the fact that you guys came to us12
early in the process.  Every month we sit here13
and we are looking at plans that are done.14

MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.15
MR. PRISBY:  They are submitted, they16

want to dig a hole, they want to start building17
tomorrow.18

MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes, right.19
MR. PRISBY:  And the ability to make,06:16:53PM 20

let's say, improvements or minor changes to a21
design to fit in, we really don't get that22
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opportunity.  And I really think with the people1
that are on this Board, there is knowledge here2
that we can really help with just another set of3
eyes to create some things that are really4
spectacular; and we don't usually get this5
opportunity.6

So I know I really appreciate the7
fact you guys came here early, you were open-8
minded; and I think the end product because of9
it shows.  Right?06:17:24PM 10

MR. HAWBECKER:  I agree.11
MR. PRISBY:  And I just wish more12

people that are watching tonight or read the13
public record understand how great this can be14
to go through this process.  Thank you very15
much.16

MR. HAWBECKER:  No.  Thanks to you guys17
as well.  I would agree with everything you18
said, and it is an improvement.19

MR. GONZALEZ:  Yes.  I'm very thankful,06:17:43PM 20
too.  I think it's the first time ever in21
12 years sitting on this Board that I ever been22

39

involved.  Because usually, it's true, it comes1
after a finished project.  And now we are just2
saying, you know, sorry.  We just reject if it's3
something so unpleasant for the block.4

But in this case, this is like,5
when I saw it this morning, I was like, whoa,6
this is good.  This is good.7

MR. HAWBECKER:  Oh, good.8
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  And it's going to set9

the tone going north on that block.06:18:12PM 10
MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.  We'll see.  Yes.11
MS. WILLIAMS:  Hopefully.12
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  As people take on the13

other structures there and come up with14
solutions like this.15

MR. HAWBECKER:  Right.  Yes.  We will16
see.17

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You are to be18
commended for your attitude and cooperation.19

MR. HAWBECKER:  Oh, thanks for that;06:18:27PM 20
but you guys were a big help as well.  Everybody21
had a hand in this.  Now when you drive up22

40

Garfield, everybody can say, hey, I had a little1
something to do with that building.2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  That's all right.  We3
like that.4

MR. HAWBECKER:  Yes.  Right.  Right.5
MR. PRISBY:  I think we are all good6

with the color, right?7
MR. GONZALEZ:  Oh, color, yes.8

Fantastic.9
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Okay.  Could I have a06:18:45PM 10

motion.11
MS. WEINBERGER:  I move to approve.12
MR. GONZALEZ:  We can go ahead and13

second it.14
I second it.15

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  All those in favor?16
MR. PRISBY:  Aye.17
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.18
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.19
MS. WILLIAMS:  Aye.06:13:39PM 20
MR. HAWBECKER:  Thank you.21

         CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  On that note, we will22

41

close the public hearings.1
MR. PRISBY:  John, before we pass,2

because that wasn't what was in the submittal,3
does anything special have to be done here?4
There is no public record or announcements or5
anything like that.6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  That's a good point.7
This changed on the way to the forum.8

MR. PRISBY:  I certainly don't want to9
hold them up, but I do want to make sure we do06:19:28PM 10
the right thing.11

MR. YU:  I mean the discussion is in12
the public record that we are talking about the13
illustration with the turret.14

MR. PRISBY:  Okay.15
MR. YU:  So I don't think there would16

be any confusion.  Thank you for clarifying17
that.18

MR. GONZALEZ:  It's not going to go19
away, that's what we are saying.06:19:46PM 20

MR YU:  Oh, no.21
MR. BOHNEN:  So we will close the22
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public hearing.  Thank you very much.1
              * * *2

(Which were all the proceedings had3
               in the above-entitled cause.)4

5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR,
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand
notes so taken as aforesaid.

         __________________________________
          Janice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR
          License No. 084-001391
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   September 4, 2019 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  719 S. Park Ave. – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Demolish a house in 

the Robbins Park Historic District to Construct a New House – Case HPC-05-2019 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Greenside Design Build, requesting approval for 

a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish an existing house in the Robbins Park Historic District to 

construct a new house. Per the Village Code, no permits shall be issued for demolition of any structure 

located in a designated historic district without the rendering of a final decision by the Historic 

Preservation Commission (HPC) on an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is located on an interior lot on S. Park Avenue. The existing home was constructed 

in 1915 in a Craftsman style according to the National Register of Historic Places.  The applicant would like 

to seek the right to obtain a demolition permit to construct a new Code compliant house (attached). The 

subject property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, 

south, east and west. Per the submitted plat of survey, it is a code compliant lot that is 41,474 SF in area. 

The existing building, per the National Register of Historic Places, is a contributing structure in the Robbins 

Park Historic District. However, the existing detached garage is not a contributing structure. 

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no permits 

shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the exterior 

architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic district 

without the rendering of a final decision by the commission on an application for a certificate of 

appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 

The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 

Attachment 4. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 -  National Register of Historic Places Sheet  
Attachment 6 -  719 S. Park Ave. Street View 
Attachment 7 -  719 S. Park Ave. Aerial View 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   September 4, 2019 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  332 E. Chicago Ave. – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Construct a New 

House in the Robbins Park Historic District – Case HPC-07-2019 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Kathleen Hanley, requesting approval for a 

Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a new house in the Robbins Park Historic District. Per the 

Village Code, no permits shall be issued for new construction located in a designated historic district 

without the rendering of a final decision by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) on an application 

for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is located on an interior lot on Chicago Avenue. The applicant would like to seek the 

right to obtain a demolition permit to construct a new Code compliant house (attached). The subject 

property is located in the R-4 Single Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, south, 

east and west. Per the submitted plat of survey, it is a legal nonconforming lot that is approximately 9,018 

SF in area. Bryan/Sebring is the project architect and builder for the proposed new 2-story residential 

home. 

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no permits 

shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the exterior 

architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic district 

without the rendering of a final decision by the commission on an application for a certificate of 

appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 

The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 

Attachment 4. 
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Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 -  332 E. Chicago Ave. Aerial View 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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